



MARCH 9, 2023, 2:00 p.m. - CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING CITY GOVERNMENT OFFICIAL PROCEEDINGS OF THE MAYOR AND ALDERMEN SAVANNAH, GEORGIA

The regular meeting of the City Council was held at <u>2:05 p.m.</u> Mayor Johnson recognized <u>Alderman Detric Leggett</u> who introduced <u>Pastor Andre J. Osborne of First Tabernacle</u> <u>Missionary Baptist Church</u> to offer the invocation. The Pledge of Allegiance was recited in unison.

PRESENT:

Mayor Van R. Johnson, II, Presiding Alderwoman Kesha Gibson-Carter, At-Large, Post 1 Alderwoman Alicia Miller Blakely, At-Large, Post 2 Alderwoman Bernetta B. Lanier, District 1 Alderman Detric Leggett, District 2 Alderwoman Linda Wilder-Bryan, District 3 Alderman Nick Palumbo, District 4, Vice-Chairman Alderman Kurtis Purtee, District 6

ABSENT:

Alderwoman Dr. Estella Edwards Shabazz, District 5, Mayor Pro-Tem

ALSO, PRESENT:

- City Manager Joseph A. Melder
- Chief of Staff Daphanie Williams
- City Attorney Bates Lovett
- Clerk of Council Mark Massey
- Deputy Clerk of Council Margaret Fox

APPROVAL OF AGENDA

1. Adoption of the Regular Meeting Agenda for March 9, 2023.

Alderman Palumbo moved to adopt/approve the Regular Meeting Agenda for March 9, 2023, seconded by Alderwoman Wilder-Bryan and Alderman Purtee. The motion passed unanimously, 8-0-1. Mayor Pro-Tem Dr. Shabazz was absent.

2. Approval of the Minutes for the Work Session and City Manager's Briefing Held on February 23, 2023, at 4:30 p.m.

Exhibit 1: WS DRAFT MINUTES_February 23, 2023 City Council Workshop.pdf

Alderman Palumbo moved to approve Items #2 and #3, seconded by Alderwoman Lanier and Alderwoman Wilder-Bryan. The motion passed unanimously, 8-0-1. Mayor Pro-Tem Dr. Shabazz was absent.

3. Approval of the Minutes for the Regular Meeting Held on February 23, 2023, at 6:30 p.m.

Exhibit1: RM DRAFT MINUTES - February 23, 2023 City Council Regular Meeting.pdf

Alderman Palumbo moved to approve Items #2 and #3, seconded by Alderwoman Lanier and Alderwoman Wilder-Bryan. The motion passed unanimously, 8-0-1. Mayor Pro-Tem Dr. Shabazz was absent.

PRESENTATIONS

4. Appearance by the Saint Patrick's Day Parade Committee Grand Marshal and His Aides, and Presentation of the 2023 Saint Patrick's Day Parade Permit by Mayor Van R. Johnson II. The parade will be held on March 17, 2023.

PRESENTED by Mayor Johnson to the parade committee members, including the Parade Committee General Chairman Ashley Norris and Parade Grand Marshal George Schwartz.

General Chairman Norris expressed his gratitude for being able to have the St. Patrick's Day celebration and parade. He introduced Committee Member Martin Hogan who read a message in Irish. General Chairman Norris introduced members of his Executive Committee and 2023 Grand Marshall George Schwartz. Grand Marshall Schwartz introduced his wife, Sherry, his Aides, and Chaplin Father O'Brien. He asked the Mayor and Aldermen/Alderwomen for the 2023 St. Patrick's Day Parade Permit. Mayor Johnson presented the parade permit to Grand Marshall Schwartz.

Alderman Palumbo moved to approve Item #4, the parade permit, seconded by Alderman Leggett. The motion passed unanimously, 8-0-1. Mayor Pro-Tem Dr. Shabazz was absent.

5. Appearance by Gene Dobbs Bradford, Executive Director of the Savannah Music Festival, to Provide a Preview of the 2023 Savannah Music Festival.

INTRODUCED by Mayor Johnson.

Executive Director Gene Dobbs Bradford provided highlights of the Savannah Music Festival including the names of performers, and locations across the City. The 2023 Savannah Music Festival takes place March 23 through April 8, 2023.

6. Appearance by Maria Center, Executive Director of the Southeast Georgia Chapter of the American Red Cross, and a Proclamation Designating the Month of March as American Red Cross Month.

INTRODUCED by Assistant City Manager Heath Lloyd, Proclamation READ by Mayor Johnson, and PRESENTED to Maria Center.

Assistant City Manager Lloyd, as Mission and Outreach Coordinator of the Board, shared background information of Ms. Center's career serving the community and residents of Savannah.

Ms. Center thanked Mayor and Council for the recognition and invited the them to 'Sound the Alarm' on Saturday, April 29, 2023, at Connors Temple Baptist Church. Savannah Fire Department are partnering with the Red Cross to provide fire safety education and free smoke alarm installation in various communities. The Red Cross provides the smoke detectors and the fire department installs them.

7. Appearance by and Recognition of Matson Foundation's \$2,500 Donation into the Savannah Affordable Housing Fund.

PRESENTED by Executive Director of Community Housing Services Agency (CHSA) Anita Smith-Dixon to the City on behalf of Matson Logistic.

Ms. Smith-Dixon introduced Executive Director of Housing Savannah Inc. Laura Lane McKinnon, Board Member Naomi Brown, CHSA Administrative Coordinator Adela Smith, and Chairman and Board Member Jay Melder to accept the \$2,500.00 donation from Matson Logistic for the Savannah Affordable Housing Fund.

8. Appearance by and Recognition of Savannah Agenda's \$3,000 Donation into the Savannah Affordable Housing Fund.

Ms. Smith-Dixon introduced Executive Director of Housing Savannah Inc. Laura Lane McKinnon, Board Member Naomi Brown, CHSA Administrative Coordinator Adela Smith, and Chairman and Board Member Jay Melder to accept a \$3,000.00 donation from Savannah Agenda's Author Eric Curl collecting half of the funds from individual residents of the City for the Savannah Affordable Housing Fund.

Ms. McKinnon reported the Savannah Affordable Housing Fund has collected, year-to-date, \$1,045,500.00.

Alderman Palumbo congratulated Mr. Curl on his accomplishments.

9. Appearance by the City of Savannah Purchasing Department to Recognize March as Procurement Month.

PRESENTED by Mayor Johnson and City Manager Melder to Purchasing Director Johnnie Coker and staff members Cory Miller, Tiffany Daniels and Vernell Mitchell (3 staff members were unable to attend).

City Manager Melder stated, March is procurement month and the City's purchasing department does an outstanding job of dedicated public service.

Following the introduction of team members, Director Coker thanked Mayor, Council and staff for the recognition of the purchasing department.

Alderwoman Gibson-Carter recognized March as International Women's Month and March 8, 2023, as International Women's Day. Alderwoman Wilder-Bryan recognized the women working at the City of Savannah and thanked them for their service.

ALCOHOL LICENSE HEARINGS - (CITY MANAGER RECOMMENDS APPROVAL OF ALL ITEMS IN THIS SECTION UNLESS NOTED OTHERWISE)

<u>10. Approval of a Class C (Liquor, Beer, Wine) (By the Drink) Alcohol License with Sunday Sales to Gary High for Bellwether House, a Bed and Breakfast Inn at 211 East Gaston Street between Abercorn and Lincoln Streets in Aldermanic District 2. Continued from the February 7, 2023 Council Meeting.</u>

Exhibit 1: Checklist - Bellwether House.pdf Exhibit 2: Density Map - Bellwether House.pdf Exhibit 3: Alcohol Reports - Bellwether House.pdf Exhibit 4: Measurement Report - Bellwether House.pdf Exhibit 5: Bellwether House Security Plan.pdf

Mayor Johnson declared the alcohol hearings open for Items #10 through #15.

No speaker(s).

a. Alderman Palumbo moved to close the alcohol hearings for Items #10 through #15, seconded by Alderman Purtee. The motion passed unanimously, 8-0-1. Mayor Pro-Tem Dr. Shabazz was absent.

b. Alderman Leggett moved to approve Item #10, seconded by Alderwoman Wilder-Bryan. The motion passed unanimously , 8-0-1. Mayor Pro-Tem Dr. Shabazz was absent.

11. Approval of a Class C (Beer, Wine). (By the Drink) Alcohol License with Sunday Sales and a Class A (Beer, Wine). (Caterer) Alcohol License to Ryan Williamson for Wildflower Cafe on Telfair Square, a Restaurant Located at 207 West Oglethorpe Avenue. The establishment is located between Barnard and Jefferson Streets in Aldermanic District 2.

Exhibit 1: Checklist - Wildflower Cafe on Telfair Square.pdf Exhibit 2: Density Map - Wildflower Cafe on Telfair Square.pdf Exhibit 3: Alcohol Reports - Wildflower Cafe on Telfair Square.pdf Exhibit 4: Measurement Report - Wildflower Cafe on Telfair Square.pdf Exhibit 5: Security Plan - Wildflower Cafe on Telfair Square.pdf

Mayor Johnson declared the alcohol hearings open for Items #10 through #15.

Speaker(s):

- · Judee Jones, Revenue Department
- · Ryan Williamson, applicant/petitioner

Alderwoman Gibson-Carter expressed concern about how management calculated the ages of patrons. City Manager Melder asked Revenue Director Judee Jones to address the security plan of alcohol establishments. Ms. Jones asked petitioner, Ryan Williams to address Alderwoman Gibson-Carter's concerns. Mr. Williams indicated, servers use a patron's ID for age requirements. **a.** Alderman Palumbo moved to close the alcohol hearings for Items #10 through #15, seconded by Alderman Purtee. The motion passed unanimously, 8-0-1. Mayor Pro-Tem Dr. Shabazz was absent.

b. Alderman Leggett moved to approve Item #11, seconded by Alderwoman Gibson-Carter and Alderman Palumbo. The motion passed unanimously, 8-0-1. Mayor Pro-Tem Dr. Shabazz was absent.

<u>12. Approval of a Class E (Beer, Wine) (By the Package) Alcohol License to Alkesh Patel for Mall Marathon, a convenience Store Located at 8001 Waters Avenue between</u> <u>Mall Boulevard and Cranman Drive in Aldermanic District 4.</u>

Exhibit 1: Checklist - Mall Marathon.pdf Exhibit 2: Density Map - Mall Marathon.pdf Exhibit 3: Alcohol Reports - Mall Marathon.pdf Exhibit 4: Measurement Report - Mall Marathon.pdf Exhibit 5: Security Plan - Mall Marathon.pdf

Mayor Johnson declared the alcohol hearings open for Items #10 through #15.

No speaker(s).

a. Alderman Palumbo moved to close the alcohol hearings for Items #10 through #15, seconded by Alderman Purtee. The motion passed unanimously, 8-0-1. Mayor Pro-Tem Dr. Shabazz was absent.

b. Alderman Palumbo moved to approve Items #12, #13 and #14, seconded by Alderwoman Gibson-Carter, Alderwoman Miller Blakely and Alderwoman Wilder-Bryan. The motion passed unanimously, 8-0-1. Mayor Pro-Tem Dr. Shabazz was absent.

13. Approval of a Class C (Liquor, Beer, Wine) (By the Drink) Alcohol License with Sunday Sales to Krishna Patel for Hilton Garden Inn, a Hotel Located at 5711 Abercorn Street Between Johnston Street and Janet Drive in Aldermanic District 4.

Exhibit 1: Checklist - Hilton Garden Inn.pdf Exhibit 2: Density Map - Hilton Garden Inn.pdf Exhibit 3: Alcohol Reports - Hilton Garden Inn.pdf Exhibit 4: Measurement Map - Hilton Garden Inn.pdf Exhibit 5: Security Plan - Hilton Garden Inn.pdf

Mayor Johnson declared the alcohol hearings open for Items #10 through #15.

No speaker(s).

a. Alderman Palumbo moved to close the alcohol hearings for Items #10 through #15, seconded by Alderman Purtee. The motion passed unanimously, 8-0-1. Mayor Pro-Tem Dr. Shabazz was absent.

b. Alderman Palumbo moved to approve Items #12, #13 and #14, seconded by Alderwoman Gibson-Carter, Alderwoman Miller Blakely and Alderwoman Wilder-Bryan. The motion passed unanimously, 8-0-1. Mayor Pro-Tem Dr. Shabazz was absent.

14. Approval to Add a Class C (Liquor) (By the Drink) Alcohol License with Sunday Sales to the Existing Class C (Beer, Wine) (By the Drink) Alcohol License to Yulima T. Ospina for Antojo Latino, LLC t/a Antojo Latin, a Restaurant Located at 44 Posey Street Between Abercorn Street and White Bluff Road in Aldermanic District 4.

Exhibit 1: Checklist - Antojo Latino.pdf Exhibit 2: Density Map - Antojo Latino.pdf Exhibit 3: Alcohol Reports - Antojo Latino.pdf Exhibit 4: Measurement Report - Antojo Latino.pdf Exhibit 5: Security Plan - Antojo Latino.pdf

Mayor Johnson declared the alcohol hearings open for Items #10 through #15.

No speaker(s).

a. Alderman Palumbo moved to close the alcohol hearings for Items #10 through #15, seconded by Alderman Purtee. The motion passed unanimously, 8-0-1. Mayor Pro-Tem Dr. Shabazz was absent.

b. Alderman Palumbo moved to approve Items #12, #13 and #14, seconded by Alderwoman Gibson-Carter, Alderwoman Miller Blakely and Alderwoman Wilder-Bryan. The motion passed unanimously, 8-0-1. Mayor Pro-Tem Dr. Shabazz was absent.

^{15.} Approval of a Class E (Beer, Wine) (By the Package) Alcohol License to Sarvesh Sharma for Vishu Mart, LLC t/a Lucky's, a Convenience Store Located at 10004 Abercorn Street Between Television Circle and Montgomery Crossroad in Aldermanic District 5.

Exhibit 2: Density Map - Lucky's.pdf Exhibit 3: Alcohol Reports - Lucky's.pdf Exhibit 4: Measurement Report - Lucky's.pdf Exhibit 5: Security Plan - Lucky's.pdf

Mayor Johnson declared the alcohol hearings open for Items #10 through #15.

No speaker(s).

a. Alderman Palumbo moved to close the alcohol hearings for Items #10 through #15, seconded by Alderman Purtee. The motion passed unanimously, 8-0-1. Mayor Pro-Tem Dr. Shabazz was absent.

b. Alderman Palumbo moved to approve Item #15, seconded by Alderwoman Miller Blakely and Alderwoman Wilder-Bryan. The motion passed unanimously, 8-0-1. Mayor Pro-Tem Dr. Shabazz was absent.

16. Approval of a Class C (Liquor, Beer, Wine) (By the Drink) Alcohol License with Sunday Sales to Jacqueline Somesso for Sloppee Toppee, a Restaurant at 1308 Montgomery. Street Located between West Henry and West Anderson Streets in Aldermanic District 2. (City Manager recommends denial). Continued from the February 23, 2023 Council Meeting.

Exhibit 1: Checklist - Sloppee Toppee.pdf Exhibit 2: Density Map - Sloppee Toppee.pdf Exhibit 3: Alcohol Reports - Sloppee Toppee.pdf Exhibit 4: Measurement Report - Sloppee Toppee.pdf Exhibit 5: Security Plan - Sloppee Toppee.pdf Exhibit 6: SPD Memo to the City Manager - Sloppee Toppee.pdf

Mayor Johnson declared the alcohol hearing open for Item #16.

This agenda item was continued from the February 23, 2023, Council Meeting, giving the petitioner and the neighborhood association an opportunity to communicate. An agreement was established and signed.

Alderman Leggett reported the petitioner, the neighborhood association, police and Alderman Leggett met at City Hall to communicate and establish a good neighbor agreement. The petitioner, Ms. Somesso, and the neighborhood association signed the good neighbor agreement. The agreement is conditional with the alcohol license.

<u>Speaker(s)</u>:

- · Nancy Maia, President, Victorian Neighborhood Association OPPOSED
- · LaRay Benton IN SUPPORT
- · Jacqueline Somesso, applicant/petitioner
- Tony Riley IN SUPPORT

Written comment(s):

- Nancy Maia, President, Victorian Neighborhood Association OPPOSED
- Andree Patterson OPPOSED
- · Caroline Berry OPPOSED
- Steven A. Lietz OPPOSED
- Trudy Herod OPPOSED
- · DNA President OPPOSED
- Patricia Underwood OPPOSED
- · Andre Napoli OPPOSED
- · Gerald Bluett OPPOSED
- Susan J. Gorecki OPPOSED
- Margaret Goss OPPOSED
- Robert Becker OPPOSED
- Ivan Cohen IN SUPPORT

Mayor Johnson indicated Council received a letter on March 2, 2023, from the City Manager and from the Savannah Police Department (SPD), in reference to Council's request for the history of Liquid Cafe and Sloppee Toppee. He recommended Ms. Somesso get a copy of the letter which identifies problems. He asked Ms. Somesso if she is still consistent with the signed good neighbor agreement (yes).

a. Alderman Palumbo moved to close the alcohol hearing for Item #16, seconded by Alderman Leggett and Alderwoman Wilder-Bryan. The motion passed unanimously, 8-0-1.

Mayor Pro-Tem Dr. Shabazz was absent.

Mayor Johnson indicated alcohol licenses are privileges and not a right. Alcohol licenses have an administrative portion and a City Council portion. The City Manager and staff perform due diligence and the City Manager gives City Council recommendations based on findings. City Manager Melder recommended denial based on pending federal indictment charges against Ms. Somesso. Mayor Johnson expressed his concerns: 1.) Holding a person accountable for pending charges and they have not been found guilty; and 2.) There are issues and concerns with the operation of the Liquid Cafe and Sloppee Toppee. If these issues existed, the City should not have renewed the alcohol license for Liquid Cafe. Mayor Johnson's position at this time is, since there is a signed good neighbor agreement, Council proceed and make the signed agreement a condition of the alcohol license. If the agreement is not adhered to, the alcohol license will be revoked.

Alderman Palumbo asked City Manager Melder if the petitioner had a license revoked in the past. Alderman Palumbo stated, according to the Savannah Morning News in 2007 or 2008 the petitioner had a license revoked for Club Ice/Club Oz. This establishes a pattern of behavior of the petitioner showing their virtues and morale turpitude. He asked City Manager Melder to have Ms. Jones provide information on the 2007/2008 status of Club Ice/Club Oz, and forward that information to Council. City Manager Melder indicated he provided Council documentation as to his recommendation for denial, it is not controversial. Alderman Palumbo requested the calls for service from SPD for Liquid Cafe and Sloppee Toppee. City Manager Melder read the list of calls for service from a letter dated March 2, 2023.

Alderman Palumbo asked the City Attorney to explain an accusation and how a federal indictment is achieved. City Attorney Lovett provided definitions. Alderman Palumbo requested City Attorney Lovett to list the indictments against the applicant (Ms. Somesso). City Attorney Lovett read the charges. Alderman Palumbo asked if the charges happened at the Liquid Cafe. City Attorney Lovett replied, he did not note the location of the drug charges, but the money laundering and theft of PPP Loan charges were at the Liquid Cafe. Alderman Palumbo stated the applicant cited charges were against her due to guilt by association at the February 23rd City Council alcohol hearing; however, there is a charge for Count 8 - Bank Fraud, on or about May 21, 2021, Alderman Palumbo read the charges.

Alderwoman Gibson-Carter raised a point of order. Chair rules, Mayor Johnson permitted Alderman Palumbo to finish reading the charges.

Alderman Palumbo indicated the charges occurred through the alcohol license which the applicant currently holds. The applicant provided false statements to Council at the February 23, 2023, City Council alcohol hearing. The applicant is charged and charged alone. Council cannot in good conscience approve the request for an alcohol license. The charges are of the highest and most heinous nature. Alderman Palumbo highly recommends Council deny the alcohol license.

Alderwoman Wilder-Bryan stated an alcohol license is a privilege. The residents of the community want quality of living to remain the same when a new business enters the neighborhood. Her position will always be to give consideration to the residents who live in the community.

Alderman Leggett discussed his responsibility as an Alderman to represent the citizens of the community as well as the business owners. The quality of life must be of concern when making decisions. It's not a racial issue or an issue of monetary gain. It's an issue of quality of life within an established neighborhood.

Alderwoman Lanier stated the last business owner of the previous business in that location, Ms. Etta's restaurant, was a black female. The people that frequented that restaurant will probably frequent Sloppee Toppee. There are other black businesses in close proximity of the location. The area is changing. Alderwoman Lanier does not believe this business will change the nature or character of the community. The Treehouse is in that community, a place where a murder occurred and the City issued an alcohol license to that establishment. If the police call records were pulled for Ms. Somesso's businesses, Alderwoman Lanier requested the police call records for every establishment in the City issued an alcohol license. She discussed the to-go cups and requested the number of drunkenness cases involving to-go cups. Alderwoman Lanier requested the list of PPP Loan recipients.

Alderwoman Lanier admonished Council of being judgmental and apologized to Ms. Somesso.

Alderwoman Miller Blakely stated, an alcohol license is a privilege. There are less than 10 African American businesses out of 600 that have received the privilege. There is something definitely wrong with those numbers. The neighborhood association agreed to approve the alcohol license for Sloppee Toppee, and if the owner was prosecuted, the license would be revoked. It is unfair and unjust for the petitioner to be ridiculed by a Council Member. Alderwoman Miller Blakely apologized to Ms. Somesso and requested the vote on the amended motion.

Alderwoman Gibson-Carter discussed the City's responsibility of creating change for diversity. The City is currently being sued for denial of alcohol licenses. She discussed the police service calls throughout the City. All citizens should be treated with dignity. In addition to Alderwoman Lanier's request for police call records for other establishments, Alderwoman Gibson-Carter requested the list of criminal background checks for all business owners with an alcohol license. It is Council's responsibility as leaders, not to shame citizens, but to see how business owners and neighborhoods can work together within the community.

Alderwoman Wilder-Bryan called for the vote.

Ms. Somesso stated she attended a meeting, as requested by Council, with the Victorian Neighborhood Association, where a good neighbor agreement was signed. She is here today asking Council to approve her request for the alcohol license.

Mayor Johnson indicated the owner, Ms. Somesso, has charges against her and has numerous police service calls at both establishments, Liquid Cafe and Sloppee Toppee. Since there are numerous police service calls and charges against Ms. Somesso, he recommends a re-evaluation of the alcohol license issued for Liquid Cafe. City Manager Melder indicated his recommendation for denial of Sloppee Toppee is based solely on the pending federal charges against Ms. Somesso.

Alderwoman Lanier asked for the motion to be restated.

Mayor Johnson thanked the Victorian Neighborhood Association for meeting with the petitioner and being fair.

b. Alderman Purtee moved to deny the license of Item #16, seconded by Alderman Palumbo. The motion FAILED, 4-4-1. Alderman Leggett, Alderwoman Wilder-Bryan, Alderman Palumbo, and Alderman Purtee voted to deny the license. Mayor Johnson, Alderwoman Gibson-Carter, Alderwoman Miller Blakely, and Alderwoman Lanier voted no on the motion to deny. Mayor Pro-Tem Dr. Shabazz was absent.

c. Alderwoman Gibson-Carter moved to amend the motion to approve Item #16 with a good neighborhood agreement, seconded by Alderwoman Miller Blakely. The motion was not voted upon.

d. Mayor Johnson made a friendly amendment to approve Item #16 based on the conditions of a signed good neighbor agreement and with the issuance of a conditional license that could be revoked, if the applicant was later convicted or pled guilty to indictment charges. Alderwoman Gibson-Carter accepted the friendly amendment, seconded by Alderwoman Miller Blakely. The motion to approve with conditions FAILED, 4-4-1. Mayor Johnson, Alderwoman Gibson-Carter, Alderwoman Miller Blakely, and Alderwoman Lanier voted yes on the motion to approve with conditions, as described above. Alderman Leggett, Alderwoman Wilder-Bryan, Alderman Palumbo, and Alderman Purtee voted no on the motion to approve with conditions. Mayor Pro-Tem Dr. Shabazz was absent.

ZONING HEARINGS

17. Petition of Robert McCorkle (Agent) on Behalf of Paul Amrein (Owner) to Amend the Zoning Map from RSF-6 (Residential Single Family.- 6,000 square foot lot minimum) to OI (Office Institutional) for a 1.14 Acre Property Located at 5106 Skidaway Road (PIN 20137 01003), District 3 (File No. 22-005903-ZA), Continued from the February 23, 2023 Council Meeting.

Exhibit 1: MPC Recommendation Packet for 5106 Skidaway Road (File No. 22-005903-ZA).pdf

Exhibit 2: Photos for 5106 Skidaway (File No. 22-005903-ZA).pdf

Exhibit 5: Draft Ordinance for 5106 Skidaway Road (File No. 22-5903-ZA).pdf

Mayor Johnson opened the zoning hearing for Item #17. (See Item #19).

Exhibit 3: Maps for 5106 Skidaway Road (File No. 22-005903-ZA).pdf

Exhibit 4: Residential Conversions along Skidaway Road (File No. 22-005903-ZA).pdf

<u>Speaker(s)</u>:

- · Marcus Lotson, MPC representative
- Robert McCorkle, representing the applicant

Mr. McCorkle gave a detailed description and explanation of how the owner will use the property. He asked for City Council's approval of the project.

Alderwoman Wilder-Bryan expressed concern of how the owner will use the property longterm. Residents are concerned with approving a specific business, if it changes into a different type business in the future.

Alderwoman Lanier asked Clerk of Council if any public comments were received in reference to Item #17 (no).

Alderwoman Lanier moved to close the zoning hearing for Item #17, seconded by Alderwoman Miller Blakely. The motion passed unanimously, 8-0-1. Mayor Pro-Tem Dr. Shabazz was absent.

18. Petition of Harley Krinsky to Change the Status of 301 Alice Street (PIN 20045 16001) from a Contributing to Non-contributing Structure in the Savannah Downtown Historic Overlay District. Aldermanic District 2. (File No. 22-005388-COA)

Exhibit 1: Savannah Downtown Historic District Board of Review Staff Report for 301 Alice Street (File No. 22-005388-COA).pdf

Exhibit 2: Savannah Downtown Historic District Board of Review Recommendation for 301 Alice Street (File No. 22-005388-COA).pdf

Exhibit 3: Historic Building Map for the Savannah Historic District.pdf

Exhibit 4: Photos of 301 Alice Street.pdf

Exhibit 5: Proposed Ordinance to Revise the Savannah Downtown Historic District Contributing Resources Map (File No. 22-005388-COA).pdf

Mayor Johnson declared the zoning hearing open for Item #18. (See Item #20).

<u>Speaker(s)</u>:

- Marcus Lotson, MPC representative
- Leah Michalak, representing the Historic District Board of Review
- Ryan Jarles, Director of Preservation & Historic Properties OPPOSED
- Harley Krinsky, applicant/petitioner
- Ralph Anderson, representing the applicant

Written comment(s):

- Ryan Jarles OPPOSED
- · Ron Melander on behalf of several neighbors IN SUPPORT

Alderman Leggett asked the petitioner if he planned to build a single family residence on the property (yes). Alderman Leggett expressed concern for the church across the street and future use of the property changing to an alcohol business. Mr. Krinsky stated the Pastor supports a single family home on the property.

Alderwoman Wilder-Bryan asked Mr. Jarles to define for the public the definitions of contributing and non-contributing factors. Mr. Jarles stated any structure built before 1973 is considered historic and the cinder block is a historic material.

Mayor Johnson asked if the concern is more about this specific property or the precedent it might set. Mr. Jarles indicated, both. Mayor Johnson asked if the building is currently functioning. Mr. Krinsky replied, for the past thirty years the building has been used as a construction warehouse by owner, Ralph Anderson.

Alderwoman Miller Blakely asked when the building was constructed. Mr. Krinsky replied, 1953. Alderwoman Miller Blakely asked for the MPC recommendation. Ms. Michalak replied, the Historic District Board of Review recommended to de-list the structure.

Alderwoman Lanier asked owner, Mr. Anderson, what year he purchased the building. Mr. Anderson replied, 1991 and he was not notified the building was placed on the list of historic structures (they had the wrong mailing address). Alderwoman Lanier discussed how the building became historic and how important block buildings and tabby houses were during that time in history.

Alderwoman Gibson-Carter asked if this was the Savannah Historic Foundation. Mr. Krinsky replied, Ms. Michalak represents the Historic District Board of Review empowered by City Council for recommendations, and Mr. Jarles represents the Historic Savannah Foundation, a private funded organization expressing an opinion. Alderwoman Gibson-Carter expressed her concern in finding the integrity and the value in the representative body, and she asked if

it is the same body who recommended the demolition of the church at East Broad and Gwinnett Streets built in the 1800's. City Manager Melder indicated the issue with that church, it was outside the purview of the Historic District Board of Review. It was not the same body, the City of Savannah allowed it.

Alderman Palumbo viewed the structure. It is a very compromised space; the entrance doors at the north and south location were replaced with an incompatible modern vinyl material; the windows were replaced; and the roof would be very difficult to replace. If it rains, the rain would probably run right through the structure. It would be very difficult to envision how the building could be restored with adequate/productive use.

Alderman Leggett moved to close the zoning hearing for Item #18, seconded by Alderwoman Wilder-Bryan. The motion passed unanimously, 8-0-1. Mayor Pro-Tem Dr. Shabazz was absent.

ORDINANCES - FIRST AND SECOND READING - (CITY MANAGER RECOMMENDS APPROVAL OF ALL ITEMS IN THIS SECTION UNLESS NOTED OTHERWISE)

<u>19. Petition of Robert McCorkle (Agent) on Behalf of Paul Amrien (Owner) to Amend the Zoning Map from RSF-6 (Residential Single Family - 6,000 square foot lot minimum)</u> to OL (Office Institutional) for a 1.14 Acre Property Located at 5106 Skidaway Road (PIN 20137 01003), District 3 (File No. 22-005903-ZA).

Exhibit 1: MPC Recommendation Packet for 5106 Skidaway Road (File No. 22-005903-ZA).pdf

Exhibit 2: Photos for 5106 Skidaway (File No. 22-005903-ZA).pdf

Exhibit 3: Maps for 5106 Skidaway Road (File No. 22-005903-ZA).pdf

Exhibit 4: Residential Conversions along Skidaway Road (File No. 22-005903-ZA).pdf

Exhibit 5: Draft Ordinance for 5106 Skidaway Road (File No. 22-5903-ZA).pdf

After the first reading was considered the second reading and a request that an ordinance be placed and passed upon its adoption, Alderwoman Wilder-Bryan moved to deny Item #19, seconded by Alderman Leggett. The motion passed, 5-3-1. Mayor Johnson, Alderman Leggett, Alderwoman Wilder-Bryan, Alderman Palumbo, and Alderman Purtee voting yes to deny. Alderwoman Gibson-Carter, Alderwoman Miller Blakely, and Alderwoman Lanier voted no to the denial. Mayor Pro-Tem Dr. Shabazz was absent.

Alderwoman Wilder-Bryan stated a reconsideration would be made by residents when/if the applicant/petitioner presented a definite business plan.

20. Petition of Harley Krinsky to Change the Status of 301 Alice Street (PIN 20045 16001) from a Contributing to Non-contributing Structure in the Savannah Downtown Historic Overlay District. Aldermanic District 2. (File No. 22-005388-COA)

Exhibit 1: Savannah Downtown Historic District Board of Review Staff Report for 301 Alice Street (File No. 22-005388-COA).pdf

Exhibit 2: Savannah Downtown Historic District Board of Review Recommendation for 301 Alice Street (File No. 22-005388-COA).pdf

Exhibit 3: Historic Building Map for the Savannah Historic District.pdf

Exhibit 4: Photos of 301 Alice Street.pdf

Exhibit 5: Proposed Ordinance to Revise the Savannah Downtown Historic District Contributing Resources Map (File No. 22-005388-COA).pdf

After the first reading was considered the second reading and a request that an ordinance be placed and passed upon its adoption, Alderman Leggett moved to approve Item #20, seconded by Alderwoman Wilder-Bryan. The motion passed, 5-3-1. Mayor Johnson, Alderman Leggett, Alderwoman Wilder-Bryan, Alderman Palumbo, and Alderman Purtee voting yes. Alderwoman Gibson-Carter, Alderwoman Miller Blakely, and Alderwoman Lanier voted no. Mayor Pro-Tem Dr. Shabazz was absent.

21. First and Second Reading of the Parklet Ordinance. An Ordinance to Amend Part 6, Licensing and Regulation, Chapter 1, Business and Occupations, of the Code of the City of Savannah, Georgia to Add a New Article - JJ. - Parklets.

Parklet Ordinance.SWB.pdf

After the first reading was considered the second reading and a request that an ordinance be placed and passed upon its adoption, Alderwoman Wilder-Bryan moved to approve Item #21, seconded by Alderman Palumbo. The motion passed unanimously, 8-0-1. Mayor Pro-Tem Dr. Shabazz was absent.

Alderwoman Miller Blakely advised the public the Parklet Ordinance is City-wide and not just for the downtown area.

PURCHASING ITEMS - (CITY MANAGER RECOMMENDS APPROVAL OF ALL ITEMS IN THIS SECTION UNLESS NOTED OTHERWISE)

22. Notification of an Emergency Purchase for a Pin Rack Assembly with WSG & Solutions, Inc in the Amount of \$57,930. The pin rack assembly works in conjunction with the stationary bar screens which are designed to remove floating debris from incoming stormwater. (Stormwater Management)

Exhibit 1: Funding Verification - Pin Rack Assembly.pdf

Exhibit 2: Purchasing Notes - Pin Rack Assembly.pdf

Alderman Palumbo moved to approve Items #22, #23, and #25 through #28, seconded by Alderman Leggett and Alderwoman Wilder-Bryan. The motion passed unanimously, 8-0-1.

Mayor Pro-Tem Dr. Shabazz was absent.

23. Notification of an Emergency Purchase for Water Line Repairs with Sam-Jay Services (LOCAL) in an Amount Not to Exceed \$99,446. The service was used to repair multiple water lines and main breaks throughout the City of Savannah. (Conveyance and Distribution)

Exhibt 1: Funding Verification - Water Line Repairs.pdf Exhibit 2: Purchasing Notes - Water Line Repairs.pdf

Alderman Palumbo moved to approve Items #22, #23, and #25 through #28, seconded by Alderman Leggett and Alderwoman Wilder-Bryan. The motion passed unanimously, 8-0-1. Mayor Pro-Tem Dr. Shabazz was absent.

24. Authorize the City Manager to Execute a Contract for the Installation of Lights at the Highlands Park Walking Trail Phase 1 with Georgia Power in the Amount of \$111,070. This will provide for the installation of 25 LED lights along the walking trail. (Capital Projects)

Exhibit 1: Funding Verification - Highlands Park Walking Trail Lighting,pdf Exhibit 2: Purchasing Notes - Highlands Park Walking Trail Lighting,pdf

Alderwoman Lanier expressed her appreciation for the walking trail lights and informed the residents of The Highlands that Phase I is moving forward.

Mayor Johnson indicated the City is trying to secure \$26.5 million to alleviate the traffic congestion at Highlands and Benton Boulevards.

Alderwoman Lanier moved to approve Item #24, seconded by Alderwoman Miller Blakely. The motion passed unanimously, 8-0-1. Mayor Pro-Tem Dr. Shabazz was absent.

25. Authorize the City Manager to Execute Contract Modification No. 1 for Low Voltage Cabling Services with Netplanner Systems, Inc. (LOCAL) in the Amount of \$73,624. This contract modification will be used by the Innovation + Technology Services Department (ITS) to procure and install the required IT infrastructure for Landmark Building Located at 6600 Abercorn Street. (ITS)

Exhibit 1: Funding Verification - Low Voltage.pdf Exhibit 2: Purchasing Notes - Low Voltage.pdf

Alderman Palumbo moved to approve Items #22, #23, and #25 through #28, seconded by Alderman Leggett and Alderwoman Wilder-Bryan. The motion passed unanimously, 8-0-1. Mayor Pro-Tem Dr. Shabazz was absent.

26. Authorize the City Manager to Execute a Contract for Temporary Staffing with Robert Half International, Inc. (LOCAL) in an Amount Not to Exceed \$125,000. The Innovation + Technology Services Department (ITS) will use the temporary staffing services to provide technical knowledge and skill in specialized computer applications for all City users. These will include software and PC upgrades, helpdesk and network services support, as well as program/project support. (ITS)

Exhibit 1: Funding Verification - Staffing Services for ITS.pdf

Exhibit 2: Purchasing Notes - Staffing Services for ITS.pdf

Alderman Palumbo moved to approve Items #22, #23, and #25 through #28, seconded by Alderman Leggett and Alderwoman Wilder-Bryan. The motion passed unanimously, 8-0-1. Mayor Pro-Tem Dr. Shabazz was absent.

27. Authorize the City Manager to Execute a Contract for Portable Radios with Motorola in an Amount Not to Exceed \$225,000. This contract will be used by the Innovation + Technology Services Department's Mobile Services to purchase radios for the Savannah Police Department to replace radios that are aging and have fallen out of production. (ITS)

Exhibit 1: Funding Verification - Motorola Portable Radios.pdf

Exhibit 2: Purchasing Notes - Motorola Portable Radios.pdf

Alderman Palumbo moved to approve Items #22, #23, and #25 through #28, seconded by Alderman Leggett and Alderwoman Wilder-Bryan. The motion passed unanimously, 8-0-1. Mayor Pro-Tem Dr. Shabazz was absent.

28. Authorize the City Manager to Execute a Contract for Computer Replacements and New Purchases with Dell Marketing LP in an Amount Not to Exceed \$625,750. This contract will be used by the Innovation + Technology Services Department to provide end user devices such as laptops, desktops, monitors, and rugged tablets. (ITS)

Exhibit 1: Funding Verification - Dell Computer Replacement.pdf

Exhibit 2: Purchasing Notes - Dell Computer Replacement.pdf

Alderman Palumbo moved to approve Items #22, #23, and #25 through #28, seconded by Alderman Leggett and Alderwoman Wilder-Bryan. The motion passed unanimously, 8-0-1. Mayor Pro-Tem Dr. Shabazz was absent.

29. Authorize the City Manager to Execute a Contract for Portable Toilet Rentals with United Sites Services in an Amount Not to Exceed \$122,290. This contract will be used by the Special Events, Film & Tourism Department to provide portable toilets for the St. Patrick's Festival, Martin Luther King, Jr. Parade, Veteran's Day Parade and Savannah State Home Coming Parade.(Special Events)

Exhibit 1: Funding Verification - Portalets.pdf

Exhibit 2: Purchasing Note - Portalets.pdf

Mayor Johnson and City Manager Melder, spoke about equity. For years, portable toilets were provided along the St. Patrick's Day Parade only; the City staff found a way to provide

portable toilets for the other parades. Mayor Johnson thanked the City Manager for the much needed addition for other parade events.

Alderwoman Miller Blakely requested the Juneteenth Holiday be included in the contract. City Manager Melder indicated the Juneteenth Holiday will have portable toilets available for the public.

Alderwoman Miller Blakely expressed her desire to make a motion to include the Juneteenth Holiday in Item #29 contract for portable toilets. City Manager Melder indicated the City provides for portable toilets during the Juneteenth Holiday. Alderwoman Miller Blakely asked even though it is provided by the City, can it be added in Item #29. Mayor Johnson indicated that would be out of order, the City Manager stated it will be provided. City Manager Melder indicated the City provides the portable toilets for Juneteenth, so another contract will not be necessary.

Mayor Johnson moved to approve Item #29, seconded by Alderman Palumbo and Alderman Purtee. The motion passed unanimously, 8-0-1. Mayor Pro-Tem Dr. Shabazz was absent.

Alderwoman Lanier asked Clerk of Council who made the motion for Item #29 (Mayor Johnson). Alderwoman Lanier stated, it was improper. Mayor Johnson indicated, he can make a motion. Clerk of Council Massey indicated the Mayor is a voting Member of Council, the motion was proper.

SAVANNAH AIRPORT COMMISSION

30. Approval of a Sponsorship with the Savannah Ghost Pirates for the 2024 Warrior/ECHL All-Star Classic Games, in the Amount of \$55,000.

HEARD after Item #9.

Alderman Palumbo moved to approve Items #30, #31 and #32, seconded by Alderwoman Wilder-Bryan and Alderman Purtee. The motion passed unanimously, 8-0-1. Mayor Pro-Tem Dr. Shabazz was absent.

31. Approval for the Savannah/Hilton Head International Airport to Participate in an Advertising Campaign in New Haven, CT, to Promote Service on Avelo Airlines, in the Amount of \$91,349.

HEARD after Item #9.

Alderman Palumbo moved to approve Items #30, #31 and #32, seconded by Alderwoman Wilder-Bryan and Alderman Purtee. The motion passed unanimously, 8-0-1. Mayor Pro-Tem Dr. Shabazz was absent.

<u>32. Approval to Participate in the 2023 Visit Savannah Co-Op Digital Advertising Campaign, in the Amount of \$300,000.</u>

HEARD after Item #9.

Alderman Palumbo moved to approve Items #30, #31 and #32, seconded by Alderwoman Wilder-Bryan and Alderman Purtee. The motion passed unanimously, 8-0-1. Mayor Pro-Tem Dr. Shabazz was absent.

RESOLUTIONS - (CITY MANAGER RECOMMENDS APPROVAL OF ALL ITEMS IN THIS SECTION UNLESS NOTED OTHERWISE)

33. Enactment of Section 6-2421, also known as The Festival Ordinance of 2013.

Exhibit 1: Festival Ordinance 02172023.docx

Alderman Palumbo moved to approve Item #33, seconded by Alderwoman Gibson-Carter and Alderwoman Miller Blakely. The motion passed unanimously, 8-0-1. Mayor Pro-Tem Dr. Shabazz was absent.

AGREEMENTS

34. Approval of a Water & Sewer Agreement with Sweetwater Developers, LLC for Sweetwater Station Phases 8, 10 and 11. This is for a development consisting of 81 single family homes in the Gateway Service area. Also, approval of an associated railroad Facility Encroachment Agreement inclusive of cost sharing provision as stated.

Exhibit 1 : Water & Sewer Agreement - Sweetwater Phase 8 10 & 11.pdf

Exhibit 3 : Sweetwater-Georgetown Water Main Loop.pdf

Alderman Purtee moved to approve Items #34 and #35, seconded by Alderwoman Miller Blakely and Alderman Palumbo. The motion passed unanimously, 8-0-1. Mayor Pro-Tem Dr. Shabazz was absent.

Exhibit 2 : Facility Encroachment Agreement.pdf

^{35.} Approval of a Water & Sewer Agreement with Sweetwater Investors, LLC for Sweetwater Station Phase 9. This is for a development consisting of 30 single family homes in the Sweetwater service area.

Exhibit 1 : Water & Sewer Agreement - Sweetwater Phase 9.pdf

Alderman Purtee moved to approve Items #34 and #35, seconded by Alderwoman Miller Blakely and Alderman Palumbo. The motion passed unanimously, 8-0-1. Mayor Pro-Tem Dr. Shabazz was absent.

REAL ESTATE ITEMS - (CITY MANAGER RECOMMENDS APPROVAL OF ALL ITEMS IN THIS SECTION UNLESS NOTED OTHERWISE)

36. Authorize the City Manager to Accept Donation of a Portion of 5111 Abercorn Street (PIN 20128 02001).

Exhibit 1: Map - 5111 Abercorn Street.pdf Exhibit 2: Plat of Donation Area - 5111 Abercorn Street.pdf

Alderman Leggett moved to approve Item #36, seconded by Alderwoman Miller Blakely, Alderwoman Wilder-Bryan and Alderman Palumbo. The motion passed unanimously, 8-0-1. Mayor Pro-Tem Dr. Shabazz was absent.

CITY ATTORNEY ITEMS

37. Settlement #1

Alderwoman Wilder-Bryan moved to approve Items #37 and #38, to authorize the City Attorney's office to resolve the (injury) claim of Dylan Merritt for \$150,000.00, seconded by Alderman Leggett. The motion passed unanimously, 8-0-1. Mayor Pro-Tem Dr. Shabazz was absent.

38. Settlement #2

Alderwoman Wilder-Bryan moved to approve Items #37 and #38, to authorize the City Attorney's office to resolve the (trip and fall) claim of Michelle Willis for \$180,000.00, seconded by Alderman Leggett. The motion passed unanimously, 8-0-1. Mayor Pro-Tem Dr. Shabazz was absent.

ANNOUNCEMENTS:

City Manager Melder wished all a safe and festive St. Patrick's Day.

Mayor Johnson adjourned the Regular Meeting at <u>4:56 p.m.</u>

A video recording of the Regular Meeting can be found by copying and inserting the link below in your url:

https://savannahgovtv.viebit.com/player.php?hash=oTByzb8ny9JR

Mark Massey, Clerk of Council

Date Minutes Approved:

